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Ambaséid na hEireann
Embassy of Ireland

20 Arkana Street
Yarralumla ACT 2600

Australia
Telephone: (06) 273 3022
$ Facsimile: (06) 273 3741

5 November 1996

Mr David Cooney
Anglo-Irish Division

Confidential

Visa Application by Mr Gerry Adams to visit Australia

Dear David

You will already have received a report from Joc Shechan of today's newspapcr coverage here

of the Adams visa application to visit Australia.

In the coursc of the day I've had two conversations about the visa application with the British
1ligh Commissioner. The High Commissioner said that it was his information that
yesterday's discussion at the Federal Cabinet Meeting had been inconclusive. When

| visa applications the Federal Cabinet considers threc main arcas of
first is security, the second is character, and the third
1. Tt was readily agreed at yesterday's Cabinct
meeting that the visit constituted no security thrcat towards Australia. However there was an
incomplete discussion on the question of character which focussed on whether or not Adams
has a criminal record and on his associations with those who have. In thc discussion,
according to the Jligh Commissioner, the Minister for Immigration, Mr Phillip Ruddock, MP,
(a former deputy chairman of the Federal Parliament's Irish Fricndship Group) adopted a
particularly legalistic vicw - internment is not conviction - as a result of which he was asked
by the Prime Minister to further consider the question of character and if he was not
convinced that Adams could be denied a visa on the basis of the criteria applied by his
Depurtment, he should consult Foreign Ministcr Downer to consider the forcign policy
implications of granting a visa to the President of Sinn Fein.

~ considcring controversia
concem in rcaching their decision - the
arca is that of foreign policy implicatior

The High Commissioncr is fully satisfied that in any discussion between Ruddock and
Downer the latter would strongly arguc that the visa application should bc refused on foreign
policy grounds. However, the High Commissioner is concerncd (a) that the debate in the
Cabinet has gonc this far without a clear decision to refuse the visa and (b) that Ruddock may
insist on a precise adherence to the legally based regulation governing the evaluation of the
“character" component of the visa application. In the sccond tclephone conversation the Iligh
Commissioner said that he had, in the main, confirmed the above in a conversation this
afternoon with Virst Assistant Secretary Ruth Pearce, Assistant Secrctary Ian Forsyth and Mr
Andrew Robb of the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade. In addition, he had been told
that the issuc had now become urgent since the Sinn Fein President had informed them
(presumably through the Australian Embassy in Dublin) that he is making arrangements to
purchase his ticket and to lcave for Sydney on Thursday or Friday of this week. The High
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Commissioner was assured that Adams had been told that he should not procced with any
{ravel arrangements on the presumption that he would be grantcd a visa. However it is likely
that the Australian side will make a decision on the visa in the next few days.

In the course of the first conversation, but more expli.cilly in the course of the sccond
conversation, the High Commissioner urged me to ask Dublin if there was anything which the
Irish authorities could say o the Australians to urge them to decline the visa application. In
my responsc on both occasions | emphasised that we regard thc issuc as one which is for the
Australian authorities themsclves. Howcver, in the coursc of the second conversation, thc
High Commissioncr argued more strongly {hat some signal from Dublin would be useful
since it would "not be in %ither of our interests" {0 have the President of Sinn Fcin undcrtake
o visit to Australia at this time. He had told the Australian sidc - and I presumc that this was
in conversation with Foreign Minister Downer - that a favourable decision on the visa
application would send an cntircly wrong signal on the Peacc Process and could be
misunderstood as an acccptance of Sinn Fein's place in the Peace Proccss after the resumption
of the bombing campaign and particularly in the aftermath of the bomb in Lisburn. T lcft the
conversation on the basis that T would in the pormal way be reporting on the two
conversations be had with me and that 1 would incjude 2 reference to his particular vicws at
this time. 1 did howevcr emphasise that the Australians are regularly briefed on the Pcace
Proccss, that there had been two recent mectings between the Ténaiste and Foreign Minister
Downer, and that the Australian Embassy in Dublin follows cvents closcly and is actively
involved in the work of the International Fund for Ireland. 1 was thercfore convinced that the
Australians have sufficicnt information about the situation on the ground to inform Canbcrra
fully on the foreign policy aspects of any decision in rclation to the visa application.

Howevcr ] have no doubt that this is an issue on which he will rcturn to me again in the next
fow days or at lcast until a decision is made.

It is very clear that at least locally - and 1 should emphasisc that this may be originating from
the Jligh Commissioner himsclf - that therc is a keen desire to bring us into the task of
persuading the Australians to refuse an cntry visa to the President of Sinn Fein. While I have
not sought in my conversations with the High Commissioner, given his bigh level of anxicty
about the way the visa application is being dealt with on the Australian side, to put too much
distance between us, I have sought nonetheless to maintain the approach outlincd in your
conversation with Ambassador Stevens in Dublin. However it is ¢lcar that the High
Commissioner would like a more specific statement al {his stage and I have sought as you
will note from my comments above to avoid giving him any such specific commitment.

While a visit to Australia by the President of Sinn Fein may not be in our interest - the lrish
Governument's infcrest - as asscrted by the High Commissioner, the question of the desirability
of saying that to the Australian side is clcarly a matter of policy (and a departurc from present
policy) and could have difficult implications for us if such a signal became publicly known. I
would be grateful for any advice which you have to offer.

Yours sincerely

Richard A. O'Bricn
Ambassador




